TRUSTEES OF THE CALIFORNIA STATE UNIVERSITY

California State University Office of the Chancellor Glenn S. Dumke Auditorium 401 Golden Shore Long Beach, CA 90802

September 12, 2018

Presiding: Adam Day, Chairman

8:30 a.m. Board of Trustees

Dumke Auditorium

Call to Order

Roll Call

Public Speakers

Chair's Report

Chancellor's Report

Report of the Academic Senate CSU: Chair—Catherine Nelson

Report of the California State Student Association: President—Mia Kagianas

Report of the California State University Alumni Council: President—Manolo P. Morales

Consent

Action 1. Approval of Minutes of the Meeting of July 24, 2018

Action 2. Approval of Committee Resolutions as follows:

Committee on Campus Planning, Buildings, and Grounds

2. San José State University Interdisciplinary Science Building

10:00 a.m. Board of Trustees—Closed Session

Munitz Conference Room

Executive Personnel Matters Government Code §11126(a)(1)

^{*}The Board of Trustees is a public body, and members of the public have a right to attend and participate in its meetings. This schedule of meetings is established as a best approximation of how long each scheduled meeting will take to complete its business. Each meeting will be taken in sequence, except in unusual circumstances. Depending on the length of the discussions, which are not possible to predict with precision in advance, the scheduled meeting times indicated may vary widely. The public is advised to take this uncertainty into account in planning to attend any meeting listed on this schedule.

MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF BOARD OF TRUSTEES

Trustees of the California State University
Office of the Chancellor
Glenn S. Dumke Auditorium
401 Golden Shore
Long Beach, California

July 24, 2018

Trustees Present

Adam Day, Chairman Lillian Kimbell, Vice Chair Jane W. Carney Rebecca D. Eisen Douglas Faigin Debra S. Farar Jean Picker Firstenberg Wenda Fong **Emily Hinton** Jack McGrory Thelma Meléndez de Santa Ana John Nilon J. Lawrence Norton Romey Sabalius Christopher Steinhauser Peter J. Taylor Timothy P. White, Chancellor

Chairman Day called the meeting of the Board of Trustees to order.

Public Comment

The board heard from the following individuals during the public comment period:

William Blishke, President, CSU Emeritus and Retired Faculty Association (CSU-ERFA); Skye Dent, (CSU Bakersfield); Steve Doyle, Friends of SDSU; Jordan Fein, UNITE HERE Local 11 – CSU Northridge; Mark Anthony Alcala, UNITE HERE Local 11 – CSU Northridge; Latisha Strickland, UNITE HERE Local 11 – CSU Northridge; Roy Inong, UNITE HERE Local 11 – CSU Northridge; Rocky Sanchez, VP for Representation (CSUEU); Carolyn Duckett, Chair Bargaining Unit 7 (CSUEU); Michael Chavez, Chair Bargaining Unit 5 (CSUEU); Rich McGee, Chair

BOT Agenda Item 1 September 11-12, 2018

Bargaining Unit 9 (CSUEU); Tessy Reese, Chair Bargaining Unit 2 (CSUEU); Neil Jacklin, President (CSUEU); Sheila Hudson, CSU, Los Angeles; Meg Stofsky,, CSU, Humboldt; Jill Larrabee, CSU, Humboldt; Charmaine Lawson, CSU, Humboldt.

Chair's Report

Chairman Day's complete report can be viewed online at the following URL: https://www2.calstate.edu/csu-system/board-of-trustees/reports-of-the-chair/Pages/july-2018.aspx

Chancellor's Report

Chancellor Timothy P. White's complete report can be viewed online at the following link: https://www2.calstate.edu/csu-system/board-of-trustees/chancellor-reports/Pages/july-24-2018.aspx

Report of the Academic Senate CSU

CSU Academic Senate vice chair, Robert K. Collin's complete report can be viewed online at the following link: http://www.calstate.edu/AcadSen/Records/Chairs_Reports/

Report from the California State Student Association

CSSA President Mia Kagianas's complete report can be viewed online at the following link: https://www.calstatestudents.org/public-documents/#president

Report of the California State University Alumni Council

Alumni Council President, Manolo P. Morales' complete report can be viewed online at the following link: http://www.calstate.edu/alumni/council/bot/index.shtml

Board of Trustees

The minutes of the meeting of May 16, 2018 were approved as submitted. Chairman Day asked to move all the consent items for approval. There was a second. Chancellor White abstained from the vote on Item 3 – Executive Compensation Policy – from the Committee on University and Faculty Personnel; Trustee McGrory abstained from the vote on Item 5 – Endorsement of City of San Diego Ballot Initiative: SDSU West Campus Research Center, Stadium and River Park Initiative – from the Committee on Campus Planning, Buildings and Grounds. The Board of Trustees approved the following resolutions:

Committee on Campus Planning, Building and Grounds

California State University, Northridge Master Plan Revision (RCPBG 07-18-11)

RESOLVED, by the Board of Trustees of the California State University, that:

- 1. The Final Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration has been prepared to address any potential significant environmental impacts and mitigation measures, comments, and responses to comments associated with the Hotel Development project and all discretionary actions related thereto, as identified in the Final Initial Study and Mitigated Negative Declaration.
- 2. The Final Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration was prepared pursuant to the California Environmental Quality Act and State CEQA Guidelines.
- 3. This resolution is adopted pursuant to the requirements of Section 21081 of the Public Resources Code and Section 10591 State CEQA Guidelines which require the Board of Trustees to make findings prior to the approval of a project.
- 4. The Board of Trustees finds that the mitigated project as approved will not have a significant impact on the environment, will be constructed with the recommended mitigation measures as adopted in the Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program, and will benefit the California State University.
- 5. The California State University, Northridge Campus Master Plan Revision dated July 2018 is approved.
- 6. The chancellor or his designee is requested under Delegation of Authority granted by the Board of Trustees to file the Notice of Determination for the project.

BOT Agenda Item 1 September 11-12, 2018

California State University Maritime Academy Master Plan Revision with Enrollment Ceiling Increase (RCPBG 07-18-12)

RESOLVED, by the Board of Trustees of the California State University, that:

- 1. The Final Environmental Impact Report (FEIR) for the California State University Maritime Academy Campus Master Plan has addressed any potentially significant environmental impacts, mitigation measures, and project alternatives, comments, and responses to comments associated with approval of the proposed Campus Master Plan revision pursuant to the requirements of the California Environmental Quality Act and State CEQA Guidelines.
- 2. The FEIR addresses the proposed Campus Master Plan revision and all discretionary actions related to the project as identified in the FEIR.
- 3. This resolution is adopted pursuant to the requirements of Section 21081 of Public Resources Code and Section 15091 of the State CEQA Guidelines which require that the Board of Trustees make findings prior to the approval of a project.
- 4. The Board of Trustees hereby adopts the Findings of Fact and Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program, including all mitigation measures identified therein, for Agenda Item 4 of the July 24, 2018 meeting of the Board of Trustees' Committee on Campus Planning, Buildings and Grounds, which identifies the specific impacts of the proposed Campus Master Plan and related mitigation measures, which are hereby incorporated by reference.
- 5. The Board of Trustees has adopted the Findings of Fact and Statement of Overriding Considerations that outweigh certain remaining significant and unavoidable impacts to cultural resources.
- 6. The FEIR has identified potentially significant impacts that may result from implementation of the proposed Campus Master Plan revision. However, the Board of Trustees, by adopting the Findings of Fact, finds that the inclusion of certain mitigation measures as part of the project approval will reduce most, but not all, of those effects to less than significant levels. Those impacts which are not reduced to less than significant levels are identified as significant and unavoidable

and are overridden due to specific project benefits to the CSU identified in the Findings of Fact and Statement of Overriding Considerations.

- 7. Prior to the certification of the FEIR, the Board of Trustees reviewed and considered the above-mentioned FEIR, and finds that the FEIR reflects the independent judgment of the board. The Board of Trustees hereby certifies the FEIR for the project as complete and adequate in that the FEIR addresses all potentially significant environmental impacts of the project and fully complies with the requirements of CEQA and the CEQA Guidelines. For the purpose of CEQA and the CEQA Guidelines, the administrative record of proceedings for the project includes the following:
 - a. The 2018 Draft EIR for the California State University Maritime Academy Campus Master Plan;
 - b. The Final EIR, including comments received on the Draft EIR, and responses to comments;
 - The proceedings before the Board of Trustees relating to the subject master plan revision, including testimony and documentary evidence introduced at such proceedings; and
 - All attachments, documents incorporated, and references made in the documents as specified in items (a) through (c) above.
- 8. The Board of Trustees hereby certifies the FEIR for the California State University Maritime Academy Campus Master Plan dated May 2018 as complete and in compliance with CEQA.
- 9. The California State University Maritime Academy Campus Master Plan Revision dated July 2018 is approved.
- 10. The chancellor or his designee is requested under Delegation of Authority granted by the Board of Trustees to file the Notice of Determination for the Final Environmental Impact Report for the California State University Maritime Academy Campus Master Plan.

BOT Agenda Item 1 September 11-12, 2018

Endorsement of City of San Diego Ballot Initiative: SDSU West Campus Research Center, Stadium and River Park Initiative (RCPBG 07-18-13)

RESOLVED, by the Board of Trustees of the California State University, that:

1. The Board of Trustees endorse the SDSU West Campus Research Center, Stadium, and River Park ballot initiative.

Committee on University and Faculty Personnel

Compensation for Executives (RUFP 07-18-07)

RESOLVED, by the Board of Trustees of the California State University, that the individuals named in the salary tables cited in Item 3 of the Committee on University and Faculty Personnel at the July 24, 2018 meeting of the Board of Trustees shall receive the annual base salaries cited in the tables effective July 1, 2018.